
M/WBE RFQ Addendum 1 

RFQ issue date: December 2, 2014 

Addendum 2 issue date: February 3, 2015 

 

Contents of the Addendum 

 

A. Revisions to the M/WBE RFQ – Enclosed is a summary of changes to the RFQ. 

 

B. Questions and Answers – Enclosed is a summary of questions and answers discussed at 
the pre-submission conference that took place January 21, 2015. Also included are questions 
and answers that were sent to the M/WBE email address. 

 

C. Contact Information – Contact Information is provided for those individuals who attended 
the pre-submission conference and indicated that they are willing to share their contact 
information. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

A. Revisions to the M/WBE RFQ  

 

Residential Development Experience and Capacity  

See Section III.B. Qualification Requirements on page 8. 

Original: An Applicant’s experience as listed on Form C-1 and Form C-2 should represent the 
completion of construction and conversion on at least two projects within the past five years that 
together total 50 units or more.   

Revised: An Applicant’s experience as listed on Form C-1 and Form C-2 should represent the 
completion of construction and conversion of ONE OR two projects within the past TEN years 
that together total 50 units or more.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



B. M/WBE RFQ Pre-submission Conference Question and Answers 

M/WBE Certification 
 
Q1: How do I register a Minority Company? 
A1: For information on how to certify as an M/WBE, please visit: 
http://www.nyc.gov/html/sbs/html/procurement/certify.shtml 
 
Q2: Would HPD be willing to allow a 100% minority owned firm which cannot be certified 
as a MWBE (personal net worth of shareholders exceeds allowable amount) to submit 
and be qualified under this program? 
A2: For the purposes of this RFQ, HPD will only be considering applications from certified 
M/WBEs or entities in the process of obtaining certification. For applicants who are in the 
process of obtaining M/WBE certification and meet all other RFQ requirements, assignment to 
the pre-qualified list is conditional until certification has been obtained. 
 
Q3: I am a development firm that is not certified.  Who should we certify with?  
A3: For the purposes of this RFQ, an M/WBE will be any partnership, corporation, or sole 
proprietorship that has been certified as an M/WBE by the New York City Department of Small 
Business Services, Empire State Development, State of New Jersey Department of Treasury, or 
the Port Authority of New York & New Jersey.  Please start the certification process as soon as 
possible.  If you certify with SBS, email MWBERFQ@hpd.nyc.gov.  HPD will reach out to SBS 
about expediting the certification.    
 
Q4: Does the rest of the team need to be M/WBE? 
A4: No. 
 
Q5: If certification takes 6-9 months, can you apply to this RFQ? 
A5:  You may apply to the RFQ.  Assignment to the Pre-Qualified List will be conditional until 
certification.  An Applicant must be M/WBE certified by the time RFP submissions will be due.   
 
Q6: How will we be able to qualify if the RFP comes out in May? 
A6: See Question/Answer 3 and 5 above. 
 
Q7: Does the Developer entity of a certified entity need to be certified? 
A7: Yes, if the developer entity is the applicant. 
 
Q8: How are you reviewing applications for new enterprises? 
A8: New enterprises must be M/WBE certified, or in the process of being certified. 
 
Q9: What is the proof to show a certification application is in process with SBS?  
A9: A letter on the SBS’ letterhead stating the application is in progress with a docket number. 
 
Q10: If a non-MWBE joined to form ownership with MWBE who has 51% ownership, is 
this considered MWBE certified? 
A10: All entities must go through the certification process.  Newly formed entities are not 
considered certified as of right.  In this scenario, the new entity would be eligible for M/WBE 
certification through the NYC Small Business Services if they meet at least the following criteria: 
a) minorities or women own 51% of the business; b) the minority or women owners have a 
controlling stake in the business; and c) are in operation under the new business for a minimum 



of 1 year.  This list of requirements is not meant to be exhaustive or completely represent the 
M/WBE certification process.  Please refer to the certifying entity for more details about all 
requirements to become M/WBE certified.   

 

Development Experience 
 
Q1: Is development experience limited to NYC, or can it be in NY State? 
A1: Development experience is limited to New York City.  
 
Q2: Does NYC means the 5 boroughs? 
A2: Yes 
 
Q3: Can development experience be more than 5 years ago? 
A3: This has been revised.  An Applicant’s experience as listed on Form C-1 and Form C-2 
should represent the completion of construction and conversion on at least one or two projects 
within the past TEN years that together total 50 units or more.   
 
Q4: In Section III Part B of the RFQ it states Form C should represent the “completion of 
construction and conversion on at least two projects within the past five years”. Does 
this just mean new construction projects? Or is substantial rehabilitation included as 
well? 
A4: Substantial rehabilitation projects are acceptable. 
 
Q5. Will projects still under construction be considered?  
A5: No. 
 
Q6: I have construction experience but not Development. Is that acceptable? 
A6: Experience as a developer is one of the requirements in the RFQ. 

Q7: If I bring in a joint venture partner in the RFQ will this help my Development 
experience? 
A7: For the purposes of this RFQ, HPD will not be accepting applications from joint ventures.  
However, HPD may accept proposals in response to the forthcoming RFP from joint ventures 
composed of Qualified Sponsors and non-M/WBE sponsors subject to the terms of the RFP.   
 
Q8: How fixed is the 50 units requirement? 
A8: It is a minimum requirement. 
 
Q9:  Would M/WBE Developers without 50 units of experience have to JV on the RFQ? 
A9: See Question 7 above.     
 
Q10: Can a General Contractor who is participating in the Capacity Building course with 
no development experience qualify? 
A10: Development experience is a minimum requirement of the RFQ. 
 
Q11: Can a development consultant be used for the purpose of RFQ? 
A11: No.   
 
Q12: Do minority non-profit developers qualify? 



A12: Only certified M/WBE developers qualify.   
 
Q13: What is considered completion for condos? 
A13: Construction completion is necessary.  If all the condos have not been sold, please make 
note of that in your application.   
 
Q14: Does the experience of 5 years need to be from the issuance date of the RFQ? 
A14: Yes.  This has been revised to ten years from the issuance date of the RFQ.   
 
Q15: If a company has financial capacity and principals have 20 years of experience and 
company is 1 ½ years old, would this qualify? 
A15: Please include experience for BOTH the company and the principals.  All the experience 
will be evaluated.   
 
Q16: If you are developer on one application and a management company on another 
application, is that ok? 
A16: Yes. 
 
Q17: In Development Experience form, I cannot type in or select a value in one of the 
columns on the Excel. 
A17: We have replaced the form on our website.  Please re-download the form.   
 
Q18: Is the expectation of the M/WBE to be fully self sufficient or can they higher 
subcontractors? 
A18: Subcontractors can be hired. 
 
Q19: Is one project with 50 units ok? 
A19: Yes. This has been revised.  An Applicant’s experience as listed on Form C-1 and Form C-
2 should represent the completion of construction and conversion on at least ONE OR two 
projects within the past ten years that together total 50 units or more.   
 
Q20: Is it ok that we created a new entity for the RFP?  We pass the minimum threshold 
for the RFQ.   
A20: The new entity must be M/WBE certified, or in the process of being certified.   
 
Q21: Can I identify a capital partner to use for the RFQ? 
A21:  You can identify a capital partner at the RFP stage.   
 
Q22: I purchased a company that’s meets the requirement and M/WBE owns 60%.  Is that 
ok? 
A22: Yes, the company must be M/WBE certified, or in the process of being certified.   
 
Q24: I want to confirm that for the RFQ you need to meet the minimum development team 
requirements and for the RFP you can have a partnership.   
A24: That’s correct. 
 
 
Property Management Experience 
 
Q1: Does Property Manager need to be M/WBE? 
A1: No, the Property Manager does not need to be a M/WBE. 



 
Q2: Does a Property Management partner need to be submitted for the RFQ? 
A2: Yes 
 
Q3: Does the property manager need to be part of the developer corporation, but not the 
joint venture? 
A3: No, the property manager does not need to be part of the developer corporation. 
 
Q4: Can you joint venture with the property manager? 
A4: The property manager does not need to be a joint-venture at the RFQ stage.   
 
Q5: Does Property manager need to show experience on RFQ application? 
A5: Yes, property management experience needs to be included in Form D-1. 
 
Q6: Does the management company experience have to be in affordable housing? 
A6: Yes 
 

Future RFP/Sites 

Q1: Is the RFP specifically for the RFQ? 
A1: Yes, only those on the pre-qualified list from the RFQ may apply for the RFP. 
 
Q2: What is the size of the sites?  How many sites are there? 
A2: There are a variety of sizes in the sites.  At this time, the sites range from approximately 30-
80 units.  HPD is still in the process of identifying additional sites for the RFP.  At this time, we 
do not anticipate more than 10 sites.   
 
Q3: Will there be clusters and do you apply by cluster or site? 
A3: There may be clusters, or you may apply to one site.   
 
Q4: What will be the affordability of the selected sites? 
A4: The affordability program will be based on the neighborhood and submissions will need to 
comply with HPD/HDC term sheets.   
 
Q5: Will small sites of 30 be combined? 
A5: There may be some sites that will be combined; however, some of the developments may 
only be 30 units.   
 
Q6: How many RFPs will be over the next year? 
A6: At this time, the goal is to release one RFP that includes several sites in May.  This is a pilot 
program and we will evaluate the RFQ and RFP process before making decisions for releasing 
additional RFPs. 
 
Q7: For the RFP, can we apply for more than 1 site? 
A7: Yes. 
 
Q8: Will the RFQ accepted applications be used only for the RFP, or also for other 
things? 
A8: At this time, we anticipate using the applications for this RFQ only. 
 



Q9: Will the sites be for new construction or vacant buildings? 
A9: The sites are for new construction.  There may be vacant buildings on the site.   
 

Q10: Are the anticipated buildings high rise (taller than 75 feet), mid-rise, townhouses, 
twins, or single family detached dwellings?   
A10: The anticipated buildings will range in size, from approximately 30-80 units.   
 
Q11: What section of the city do you anticipate the sites to be located?   
A11: HPD is in the process of identifying sites for the RFP.  The sites will be on city-owned land 
throughout New York City.   
 
Q12: Once approved can a developer go after all, some, or one of the properties within 
the RFP?   
A12: Once approved, a developer may apply to more than one site in the RFP. 
 

RFQ Submissions and Qualifications 
 
Q1: What is the submission deadline? 
A1: The submission deadline is 4:00 PM on Friday, March 20th. 
 

Q2: What happens if someone wants to apply after the submission deadline?  Can they 
be added to the list?    
A2: Submissions are due on Friday, March 20th at 4:00 PM.  Organizations cannot be added to 
the list after the due date. 
 
Q3: Will there be future RFQ rounds?  
A3: This is a pilot program and we will evaluate the RFQ and RFP process before making 
decisions for releasing future RFQ/RFPs. 
 
Q4: How many M/WBEs will be assigned to the pre-qualified list? 
A4: We do not have a set number the pre-qualified list.  It will depend on the number of 
applications that are submitted.   
 
Q5: If there is an addendum, will the submission due date be changed? 
A5: No 
 
Q6: Is the pre-qualified list a rolling admission?   
A6: No, the due date is March 20th.   
 
Q7: Do you want the assets for both the company and the principals? 
A7: Yes, please submit both. 
 
Q8: Does just the Assets Statement need to be provided, or other financials? 
A8: Please submit Form E or Financial Statements. 
 
Q9: Can we provide financials for the General Contractor? 
A9: You may provide financials of the General Contractor. 
 



Q10: Will the letter of intent from a bank or lender count as available funds under this 
RFQ? 
A10: A letter of intent from a bank or lender does not count as available fund for the applicant 
under this RFQ.   
 

OTHER  

Q1: Are there plans to include solar panels on these projects? 
A1: Not specifically, no.  At the RFP stage, proposals will be required to comply with the 
Enterprise Green Communities HPD Overlay.   
 
Q2: What is the relationship between the pillars for the M/WBE program and the RFQ? 
A2: The three pillars of the larger M/WBE initiative are: (1) Improving Access to Capital; (2) 
Building the Capacity of M/WBE Developers; and (3) Increasing Development Opportunities.  
There are different initiatives with each pillar.  This RFQ is within the third pillar, increasing 
development opportunities.  
 
Q3: Will the presentation be available to us? 
A3: The presentation will not be made available.  The questions and answers from the pre-
submission conference are included in this Addendum. 
 
Q4: The cost of construction can easily exceed the price point of selling or renting the 
affordable housing.  Therefore, how is the affordable housing construction cost 
subsidized?   
A4: Information about HPD's financing programs and term sheets can be found at: 
http://www.nyc.gov/html/hpd/html/developers/term-sheets.shtml 

Q5: Is the intent of the RFQ to sell the completed housing to affordable income eligible 
families or hold and rent the units to affordable income eligible families?  
A5: The intent of the program is to rent the units to income eligible households. Please go to this 
link for more information on our programs: http://www.nyc.gov/html/hpd/html/developers/term-
sheets.shtml 
 
Q6: If the intent is to hold the units for rent, is there a time period in which the units must 
be held before they can be sold?   
A6: If the Sponsor intends to sell, the Sponsor must notify the funding agencies.  This is subject 
to the agencies’ approval.  In addition, an enforcement mortgage will be due upon resale if the 
site was a former city-owned site.  
 
Q7: Is this related to NIHOP/Small Homes RFQ? 
A7: No. 
 
Q8: Can we submit questions in the future? 
A8: Yes, please submit all future questions to MWBERFQ@hpd.nyc.gov.  There will be future 
addendums with questions and answers submitted to the email address.  All written questions 
should be submitted by March 6, 2015.   
 

 
  



MWBE RFQ Pre‐Submission Conference Attendees
10 AM and 12 PM January 21, 2015, Room 1R

Last Name First Name Organization Email Phone Check to share 
your contact 
information

Apthorpe  Rachel Alloy Development rapthorpe@alloyllc.com 917‐553‐5810 Yes

Ardehali Fred Metro Safe Housing metrosafens@gmail.com 646‐895‐0818 Yes

Behrens Julie Project Urbanista julie.behrens@projecturbanista.com 646‐812‐3441 Yes

Blackwood Charlene Macquesten c_blackwood@macquesten.com 914‐667‐7227 Yes

Brizan Jason jasonbrizan@gmail.com 347‐534‐3214 Yes

Brothers Joan Manhattan Boutique Real estate jb@mbreny.com 917‐517‐2316 Yes

Brothers William Manhattan Boutique Real estate wqbinter@gmail.com 917‐517‐2330 Yes

Brown Naim Carthage Advisors nbrown@carthagerea.com 212‐776‐1919 Yes

Burrus Jonathan SLG Construction jburrus@slgconstruction.com Yes

Campbell Thomas tcampbell@thorobird.com 646‐710‐4909 Yes

Chan Nelson AAFE nelson_chan@aafe.org Yes

Chan Min City Connections Realty mchan@ccrny.com 646‐225‐1727 Yes

Cooper Vernon vcooper1147@yahoo.com 516‐775‐1841 Yes

Cox Adrian uptown229@aol.com 212‐920‐5626 Yes

Defreitas  Rohan Crescent Consulting rdefreitas@crescentconsulting.com 917‐709‐6241 Yes

Dorn Mary First Sterling Financial mdorn@firststerling.com Yes

Elysee Johann Sterling and Black Associates johann@sterlingandblack.us 646‐346‐3733 Yes

Erickson Sandra Sandra Erickson Real Estate Inc. serebronx@aol.com 718‐293‐3344 Yes

Fiedler Mark Fiedler Marciano Architecture mark@fiedlernarciano.com 212‐868‐5252 Yes

Fogliano Rella Macquesten r_fogliano@macquesten.com 914‐667‐7227 Yes

Francis Felicia feliciaf712@gmail.com 718‐839‐5117 Yes

Franklin Richard SRW Engineering richard@srw‐eng.com 917‐714‐5165 Yes

Gordon Keith NCV Captial ncvcapital@gmail.com 346‐512‐4830 Yes

Greenspan Richard Sterling & Black rgreenspan@me.com 718‐594‐0125 Yes

Haffoney Levar Greater Jamaica Development inaffoney@gjdc.org 718‐291‐0282 ext 144 Yes

Heeger Brian Duvernay Brooks bheeger@duvernaybrooks.com 646‐230‐0551 Yes
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MWBE RFQ Pre‐Submission Conference Attendees
10 AM and 12 PM January 21, 2015, Room 1R

Last Name First Name Organization Email Phone Check to share 
your contact 
information

Henzy Tim Rockabill Advicors LLC thenzy@rockabilladvisors.com 212‐682‐0497 Yes

Hernandez Loretta WG & Associates loretta@wgassociates.nyc Yes

Hewlett Wendy Lakshimi Management wendy.hewlett@aol.com 646‐299‐7394 Yes

Horsford Robert Apex Building Company rthorsford@apexb.com Yes

Ighodaro Osagie Precise Management oighodaro@precisemgt.com 718‐855‐2551 ext 146 Yes

Jamil Asif Safecon Builders Corp asifjamilra@gmail.com 917‐309‐6643 Yes

Janaricek Andrea Design AIDD Architecture andrea.j@designaidd.com 212‐255‐5056 Yes

Johnson Kenneth Solomon Builders Corporation solomonbuilders@aol.com Yes

Jones Carolyn Wadlington Moon carolync.jones@me.com Yes

Keller Ericka Brisa Builders Corporation erickakeller‐wala@brisabuilders.com 718‐774‐6103 Yes

Kennedy Vanessa Lemor Realty vanessa@lemorrealty.com 718‐219‐5580 Yes

Kernizan Delfine Gedeon GRC Consulting dkernizan@gedeongrc.com 516‐873‐7010 Yes

Knepper Stephanie SKA Marin stephknepper@skamarin.com 516‐466‐9581 Yes

Kretchmer Andrea Poko Partners akretchmer@pokomgmt.com 914‐937‐5152  ext 312 Yes

Kuhn Beau Rockabill Advicors LLC beaudkuhn@gmail.com 917‐589‐2937 Yes
Lanear Laine Metro Safe Housing lainelanear@gmail.com 718‐807‐6903 Yes
Lepre Nancy AVANTE Contracting Corp. nlepre@abra‐avante.com 914‐698‐0700 Yes
Lepre Jr. Robert Abracadabra Painting Co., Inc. rlepre@gmail.com 914‐500‐5043 Yes
Lloyd‐Abdou Nicole I&N Services nicole.lloydabdou80@gmail.com 646‐703‐9116 Yes
Lucas William WRL Realty Services wrlucas1@msn.com 516‐285‐7500 Yes
Magistro Samantha Bronx Pro smagistro@bronxprogroup.com 718‐294‐5840 ext. 321 Yes
Mallory Mason Innovative Property Management mason.mallory@gmail.com 646‐637‐3784 Yes
McSween Alexis Bootomline Construction & Development alexis@blcdnyc.com 718‐341‐1080 Yes
Mehta Parag PM architecture pmehta@pmarchitecture.com 212‐563‐2550 ext. 307 Yes
Meulen Leith ter Landair, Inc. leith@landair.us 212‐685‐9680  * 700 Yes
Miner Douglas Winthrop Management Services dminer@winthropmanagement.com  917‐207‐3713 Yes
Morrison Kenneth Lemor Realty ken@lemorrealty.com 212‐281‐2714 Yes
Moseley Jordan Jobe Development Corp pcplair@gmail.com 678‐637‐0589 Yes
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Noak Danielle daniellenoak@gmail.com 718‐293‐3344 Yes
O'Luck Mark Mach Development LLC info@machdevelopmentllc.com 212‐344‐1234 Yes
Osborn Katie The Office of Katie Osborn, Inc. katie@katiemosborn.com 917‐310‐5392 Yes
Pajaro Margarita CB Emmanuel margarita.pajaro@cbemmanuel.com 347‐534‐3213 Yes
Pinto Ian Design AIDD Architecture ian@designaidd.com 212‐255‐5056 Yes
Powell Randall Infinite Horizons, LLC bigrep1@gmail.com Yes
Punter Kenyatta Kenyatta Punter & Associates, Inc. kenyatta_punter@rkpassoc.com 212‐603‐3316 Yes
Richardson Yvette SRW yvette@srw‐eng.com 646‐863‐6160 ext 1402 Yes
Rodriguez Miriam Innovative Property Management ipmdevelopment@aol.com 718‐552‐2895 Yes
Romer Henry J SLG Construction Hjromer@slgconstruction.com Yes
Rowe Roger Maxxum Construction Corp. roger.rowe@maxxumcc.com 631‐767‐6537 Yes
Sharps Ian Kenyatta Punter & Associates, Inc. ian_sharps@rkpassoc.com 917‐952‐5506 Yes
Shiu Rich NY Real Estate Partners rshiu@nyrepartners.com 212‐889‐8899 Yes
Shojai Neda Metro Safe Housing metrosafens@gmail.com 718‐274‐2487 Yes
Sibblies Beatrice BOS Development sibbles_beatrice@bosdevelopment.com 917‐841‐2275 Yes
Velazquez Norberto JGV Management Corporation nvelaz.jgv@gmail.com 347‐291‐1746 Yes
Velazquez  Josue G. JGV Management Corporation jgvel1325@gmail.com 347‐723‐7214 Yes
Watson Michaele W. Allen Engineering PLLC info@wallenengineering.com 917‐295‐8275 Yes
Watson‐James Andrea Roraima Consulting Inc. andreawj@roraimaconsulting.com 718‐723‐1295 Yes
Watts Gwen 100 Watts Realty wattsrealty@aol.com 646‐533‐9292 Yes
Westman Casse Nandinee Phookan Arch cassie@nandineephookan.com 718‐643‐9500 Yes
Westmoreland Colin Roraima Consulting Inc. colin.westmoreland@roraimaconsulting.c718‐723‐0571 Yes
Widerkehr Deborah dawiderkehr@gmail.com 917‐302‐0939 Yes
Williams Dajuan Solomon Builders Corporation solomonbuilders@aol.com Yes
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